

Questions & Answers
RFQ #6100030241
Case Management System – PHRC – ITQ

	[bookmark: _GoBack]#
	RFQ Page Number
	RFQ Section Reference
	Question
	Answer

	1 1
	32
	D.  Detail Functional Requirements
	It appears that APPENDIX K, RFQ FUNCTIONAL AND TECHNICAL DETAIL SPREADSHEET, is missing, can you assist?
	Appendices K and L were posted to the Pennsylvania eMarketplace website on 9/24/2014.  The Commonwealth inadvertently neglected to post an addendum at that time.

	2 2
	32
	D.  Detail Functional Requirements
	Please provide the following, currently missing from the RFP:

1. Page limits for the technical volume
2. Appendix K
3. Appendix L
	Please refer to the response to Question Number 1.

Page limits have not been established for this RFQ; however, Section I-11provides as follows:

“Economy Of Preparation - Contractors should prepare proposals simply and economically, providing a straightforward, concise description of the Contractor's ability to meet the requirements of the RFQ.”

	3 3
	32
	D.  Detail Functional Requirements
	Good afternoon!  I’m trying to download all of the Appendix attachments for the Case Management RFQ, but I don’t see Appendix K or L on the download page.  Can you tell me how we go about getting these?
	Please refer to the response to Question Number 1.


	4 4
	32
	D.  Detail Functional Requirements
	Hello! Our company, CSI Technology Group, is reviewing your posting of the RFQ for the Case Management System for the Pennsylvania Human Relations Commission.  On page 32 of the RFQ document, it references an Appendix K, which is a functional and technical requirements matrix that must be completed.  I have searched the posting on your web site.  I see 15 separate documents there for this solicitation, but I do not see any Appendix K or a requirements matrix.  Could you possibly forward me a copy of this appendix or point me in the right direction if I am somehow overlooking this?  
	Please refer to the response to Question Number 1.


	5 5
	ii
	
	We are having trouble downloading solicitation file for the opportunity above.  Can you please send us all files directly or point to a different location.  Most of the files are being downloaded with extension “aspx”.
Niraj Sinha
Softek International Inc.
	Please attempt to download the documents at the following location:  
http://www.emarketplace.state.pa.us/Solicitations.aspx?SID=6100030241

If you are unable to download the documents, please go to the http://www.emarketplace.state.pa.us/ and follow the directions at the bottom of the page relating to compatibility.

If you are still unable to download the documents after ensuring you have the correct software, send an email to click on the email icon at the top right hand corner of the Pennsylvania eMarketplace home page for additional help.


	6 6
	
	
	I see that an RFQ has been released for the above named agency under the Master ITQ Contract.  Is this under a given ITQ category such as IT General.  I am trying to determine if we are qualified to respond and appreciate your feedback.
	Page ii of the RFQ states:

”This is a restricted solicitation, only those Contractors qualified in one (1) or more of the following service category(ies) under the Commonwealth’s Information Technology (IT) Services Invitation to Qualify (ITQ) Contract, 4400004480, prior to the bid opening date may respond.

•	Commercial Off-The-Shelf (COTS) Software Services
•	Consulting Services -IT General Categories
•	Modifiable Off-The-Shelf (MOTS) Software Services
•	Software as a Service (SaaS) Procurements”

	7 7
	ii
	
	I am not able to download the documents from the website.
Please help. 
Niraj Sinha
Softek International Inc.
	Please refer to the response to Question Number 5.

	8 8
	32
	D.  Detail Functional Requirements
	Hello!  Our company, CSI Technology Group, is reviewing your posting of the RFQ for the Case Management System for the Pennsylvania Human Relations Commission.  On page 32 of the RFQ document, it references an Appendix K, which is a functional and technical requirements matrix that must be completed.  I have searched the posting on your web site.  I see 15 separate documents there for this solicitation, but I do not see any Appendix K or a requirements matrix.  Could you possibly forward me a copy of this appendix or point me in the right direction if I am somehow overlooking this?
	Please refer to the response to Question Number 1.


	9 9
	11
	II-6.	Work Plan
	Per our conversation, the language in the procurement states:
Contractor shall verify that said licenses/subscriptions are currently available via the Commonwealth’s Software Reseller Contract Number 4400007199.  The Commonwealth reserves the right to procure such software/subscription either through the resulting purchase order, or through the Commonwealth’s Software Reseller Contract Number 4400007199.  Please refer to Section 37u of the Information Technology (IT) Services Invitation to Qualify (ITQ) Contract, 4400004480, for additional terms relating to commercially available software that is not currently available via the Commonwealth’s Software Reseller Contract Number 4400007199.

Upon review of the enterprise contract I could not find any case management applicable products listed.  Perhaps I have missed one?  If so, then this provision potentially prohibits competition.  If not, see below.

My point is should vendors seek to respond, they cannot have their products added to the contract unless the AGENCY requests such.  So based on the information provided, the I suggest the agency modify their language to say that upon award the PHRC will petition the OA to add the Case management software to the Enterprise Software Reseller Contract.
	Section II-6 of the RFQ has been amended to read as follows:

Describe in narrative form your technical plan for accomplishing the work.  Use the task descriptions in Part IV of this RFQ as your reference point.  Modifications of the task descriptions are permitted; however, reasons for changes should be fully explained.  Indicate the number of person hours allocated to each task.  Include a Program Evaluation and Review Technique (PERT) or similar type display, time related, showing each event.  If more than one approach is apparent, comment on why you chose this approach.  For COTS, MOTS and SaaS solutions, include a breakdown of licenses and/or subscriptions required.  Contractors are to include levels of licenses/subscriptions and quantities of each required, along with descriptions of what these levels provide in accommodating the requirements of this RFQ.  This information will be cross-referenced with the numbers identified within the Cost Submission.  If said licenses/subscriptions are not currently available via the Commonwealth’s Software Reseller Contract Number 4400007199, the Contractor agrees to enter into a license/subscription agreement with the Commonwealth that is acceptable to the Commonwealth.  If the Contractor is not the licensor of the software/subscription, then the Contractor shall comply with Section 37u of the Information Technology (IT) Services Invitation to Qualify (ITQ) Contract, 4400004480, relating to commercially available software not licensed by the Contractor.  The license agreement in the form attached hereto as Appendix P, Software License Requirements Agreement, is in a form that is acceptable to the Commonwealth.  For further information about whether a license or subscription is available  on the Commonwealth’s Software Reseller Contract Number 4400007199, please contact Joe Millovich, Commodities Specialist at (717) 214-3434 or jmillovich@pa.gov

Section IV-2, C2, has been amended as follows:

Should a COTS or SaaS be a part of the proposed solution, and if said COTS or SaaS is not currently available via the Commonwealth’s Software Reseller Contract Number 4400007199, the Contractor agrees to enter into a license/subscription agreement with the Commonwealth that is acceptable to the Commonwealth.  If the Contractor is not the licensor of the software/subscription, then the Contractor shall comply with Section 37u of the Information Technology (IT) Services Invitation to Qualify (ITQ) Contract, 4400004480, relating to commercially available software not licensed by the Contractor.  The license agreement in the form attached hereto as Appendix P, Software License Requirements Agreement, is in a form that is acceptable to the Commonwealth.  For further information about whether a license or subscription is available  on the Commonwealth’s Software Reseller Contract Number 4400007199, please contact Joe Millovich, Commodities Specialist at (717) 214-3434 or jmillovich@pa.gov

	10 1
	
	
	Regarding the solicitation documents for 6100030241, is there an RFP document that lists page limits, formatting requirements, and Key Positions?
	Please refer to the response to Question Number 2.

Additionally, the only formatting requirements applicable to this RFQ are set forth in Part II, Proposal Requirements.  Finally, Key Positions are addressed in Section II-8. Personnel Qualifications, Appendix C, Personnel Experience by Key Position and Appendix D, Proposed Personnel Reference.


	11 1
	
	
	Will the review and evaluation committee for the PHRC CMS proposal include members of each group such as Intake, Housing, Compliance and Regional Directors?
	The evaluation committee consists of members from the business, technical and policy based areas of the Commonwealth.  

	12 1
	32
	IV-3 and Appendix K

	Due to the re-engineering effort do you envision significant changes to the structure of the proof formulas used for handling cases?
	The Commonwealth does not envision significant changes to the structure of the proof formulas used for handling cases; however, the proof formula questions must be user-maintainable so that they accurately reflect current law and procedure.  Please refer to NFRM4 under the Business Requirements Tab of Appendix K, RFQ Functional and Technical Detail Spreadsheet.


	13 
	
	
	Do you envision an immediate need to allow viewing and updating case data or viewing documents from devices other than traditional personal computers?
	The Commonwealth does not envision an immediate need to allow viewing and updating case data or viewing documents from devices other than traditional personal computers.

	14 1
	
	
	Must the solution include implementation of CMS Lite or similar off-line capabilities?
	No, as this is not a stated requirement.

	15 
	
	
	What percentage of documents will be viewed from locations other than the office in which the document was scanned and imported?
	All documents and other electronic artifacts must be accessible to office other than the office that originally scanned or uploaded the artifact.

	16 
	
	
	Must all documents for both open and closed cases be available for viewing from the CMS application interface or only those for open cases?
	All documents for both open and closed cases must be available for viewing from the CMS interface.

	17 
	Page 10
	Appendix E
	Appendix E, Page 10, "If the RFI pertains to a matter that might become a case, the Clerical staff member determines jurisdiction, and routes call to intake personnel who complete initial information gathering and mail cover letter and forms to complainant.". will "Jurisdiction determination and call routing" functionalities be part of the new CMS?  
	Jurisdiction determination will be handled by the intake investigator, not by the CMS.  Call routing, if any, will be handled by the individuals taking the calls, not the CMS..

	18 2
	N/A

	
	Will a hybrid solution, set of COTS libraries along with customization and additional development be acceptable for PHRC?
	The Commonwealth has no preference concerning the solution approach.  Hence, Appendix K, RFQ Functional and Technical Detail Spreadsheet Allows For the identification of how business and technical requirements are to be accommodated (base through custom).

With regard to “preference,” the final overall solution will be measured by the “Critical Success Factors” in Part IV, Section IV-1, B.6.

	19 3
	22
	IV-1, B.3.
	As far the current document management system (Kofax and Hummingbird), it is stated under the work statement "The selected solution shall retain, or improve upon". What are the specific features that PHRC is looking forward to improve?
	The phrase “[t]he selected solution shall retain, or improve upon” is in reference to one of the specific objectives of the project, namely, compatibility with the current document capture system.  The area of possible improvement lies in the viewer, and the Commonwealth’s knowledge that many tools will possess their own viewer.  The objective being that any replacement viewer made part of the solution must be as good as or better than what is currently in place; conversely, the replacement viewer should not cause PHRC to lose functionality.

	20 
	22
	IV-1, B.3.
	What kind of interface (directly connecting to the CMS' DB or web service or other methods?) exists between the "on-line application" that collects data from public and the CMS?
	Data from the on-line form is collected into a backend database, which then uses SQL scripts for moving/inserting that data into CMS.

	21 
	23
	IV-1, B.6
	Under the critical success factors, it is stated, "Current system cannot be modified to keep with changes in PHRC policies". Can you elaborate on the types of changes?
	The types of changes referred to are as follows:

· Legislation driven, i.e., LGBT as a new covered protective class;
· Policy driven, i.e., new PHRC  priority group or work flow;
· Cross-agency driven, i.e., such as working with the Attorney General’s office on special interest cases; and 
Evolving technology.

	22 
	7
	I-19
	What are the attributes/skill sets of a "tier one technical support resource", as specified in I-19 (p.7) of the RFQ and SOW?
	The tier one technical support resource performs initial application troubleshooting, assessing if the issue is desktop, network or application based.  This individual understands how and where data is held within the current CMS system, and how to insert and extract data from those tables. This individual is aware of Commonwealth policies and next level support areas, such as LAN, application administrator, and domain support, etc.  

	23 
	7
	I-19
	Will the tier one technical resource, Business analyst and dedicated senior developer specified in I-19 (p. 7) of the RFQ and SOW be available to work as members of an integrated contractor/client project team? will those client resources be available on a full-time basis?
	The business analyst will be available on a part-time basis (60%), and the dedicated senior developer will be available at least 25% of the time during given portions of the effort, but will be made available at 100% at key points, such as deployment and knowledge transfer activities.  Given the need to maintain the ability to hold the Contractor accountable for all deliverables, the senior developer is not to be leveraged to provide deliverable items covered under the RFQ and subsequent purchase order.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, once the Contractor has developed procedures and code have been developed (such as transfer scripts), the senior developer can re-run such scripts for continued data cleansing and transfers.

	24 
	7
	I-19
	What is the expected availability of other client resources specified in I-19 (p.7) of the RFQ and SOW?
	Program area experts and IT staff will be available upon request.  Project Manager will require a one (1) day notice and the Executive Director with require a two (2) day notice.

	25 
	22 and Appendix E
	IV-1.B.1 and Appendix E.
	What are your expectations with regarding to verifying completeness of a "work-in-progress" (which, by definition, is NOT "complete"). as specified in IV-1.B.1. (p. 22
	While the possibility of “missed” requirements always exists, the requirements can be considered sufficiently complete at the conceptual level; the major functionality expected of the system has been addressed.

Detailed system requirements can be completed only when the CMS platform is known.  Thus, the Contractor will be expected to validate the current set of requirements and adapt the given conceptual-level requirements to detailed requirements within the context of the implementation platform so that the revised detailed requirements are testable and traceable.  During this process, it is possible that the exigencies of the Contractor’s solution may cause new detailed requirements to emerge.

	26 
	9
	I-24
	What is the term of the contract?
	Please refer to Section I-24, Purchase Order.

	27 
	N/A
	
	Is a custom solution acceptable?
	Please refer to the response to Question Number 17.

	28 
	N/A
	
	Do resources have to be onsite for the entire duration of the project or only on an as needed basis.
	The Contractor should recommend the desired approach.

	29 
	N/A
	
	Question – will an organization that is not an ITQ vendor in one of these categories respond as a PRIME vendor so long as they use a subcontractor that qualifies under the ITQ categories listed above? 
We have a Case management subject matter expert with lots of experience in Government CMS systems but they are not a ITQ vendor.. However, we are an ITQ vendor and SDB and are looking at partnering with them.

	No, please refer to the response to Question Number 6.

	30 
	
	
	We are a SDB enterprise with significant ECM experience (including Kofax) and are interested in partnering with a prime vendor who will be responding to the RFQ.   We understand that a pre-proposal conference will not be held.
Can you post (or send directly to requestors) the contacts for vendors who will be asking questions – so we can follow-up with them to explore teaming opportunities?
	Please refer to Addendum Number 3.

	31 
	
	
	The current CMS database is fairly complex (600 data elements, 1500 events, 422 acts of harm, 1342 protected classes, a 245 intake questions and 252 analysis questions).  Do you plan to keep the same number of data elements in the new system or is there a plan for consolidation?  
	It is understood that the complexity of the data collection and data migration will impact overall cost.  Even so, there are no measurable differences anticipated in the information being collected.   However, the complexity of the new systems scheme and how this information is stored will be determined by the Contractor and their proposed solution.

	32 
	22, 30
	IV-1,B.4 and IV-3, B.3
	RFQ, Page 22 Section B-4, and Page 30, item 3 state there is an on-line intake application that has been developed and deployed.  Can you share the web link for the on-line intake? What framework was used for the application development?  
	Contractor focus is not required for understanding the on-line form as a whole, but rather understanding that the Commonwealth must be able to retain that connection.  Currently, is the connection is retained via SQL scripts.  The senior developer will need access to where case data will be housed and how a case is established within the new solution.  The process at this point is as follows:

· The form collects data concerning a new complaint and any associated documents.  
· This information is housed and verified in a database.  
· Once the on-line user hits “Submit,” SQL pulls the next case number from CMS - issuing that case number to the complainant via e-mail for further correspondence, SQL scripts pull that data and documents from the database and inserts data and documents into the proper newly created case record.

The Commonwealth will retain the role of maintaining these scripts – the Contractor is to ensure that the senior developer has the backed information needed for re-engineering these scripts to work with the new solution.

	33 
	N/A
	
	Is it a requirement that the new CMS must be a web-based system?
	Given the distribution of the user-base, web-based is preferred, but not required.

	34 
	37
	IV-4, C, 3
	Data Conversion (RFQ page 36).   We suggest PHRC perform data cleansing since we don't know your data as well as you do. We can do data analysis and make a list of data cleansing activities to facilitate the task. 
	While PHRC knows their data, Contractors know the data validation rules associated with their tool, which must be leveraged.  Please refer to Section IV-4, C.3, Data Conversion.  Note that PHRC will be responsible for providing clarification with regard to non-compliant data.

	35 
	4
	I-14
	If we offer both SaaS and on-premise deployment, should we budget both?  Is there a preference?  
	Contractors are to provide the Commonwealth with the best proposal.   Please refer to Section I-14, Alternate Proposals.

	36 
	9
	I-24, Appendix L
	For the Cost matrix, Software tab, what number to use for the cell "Number of Years Renewal Years"?  Should it be 0, 2 or 4?  
	Please refer to the response to Question Number 26.

	37 
	N/A
	N/A
	The listed procurement amount is set to $1 million in the documentation.  Is the listed amount supposed to cover the implementation cost, or does it also include 3 or 5 year licensing and/or hosting fees as well?
	The Cost Matrix Form contains all the required costs for base year one, which must be covered via this initial budget amount. This may also include costs for year two – depending on your proposed deployment time-line.  This does not include 3-5 year licensing costs.  

	38 
	11
	II-6
	Section II-13. Cost Submittal on page 15 as well as Section IV-2, Item C Looking Forward on page 25, each reference the Dell/ASAP Software Reseller Contract #4400007199.   Commonwealth Agencies also have at their disposal, the IBM Software Contract #4400007363.  Assuming a vendor's solution utilizes IBM software in addition to products that may be procured on #4400007199, will PHRC allow the use of #44000077363 so that IBM Software can be properly quoted in Appendix L Cost Matrix?
	Yes.  

	39 
	N/A
	N/A
	Is there a preference to have this solution SaaS based versus having it housed on-Prem?
	Please refer to the response to Question Number 18.

	40 
	N/A
	Appendix L
	The Appendix L - Cost Matrix does not have an area to present pricing for a SaaS/Managed Services options.  Will this matrix be updated or should we simply use the tab for "Additional Charges" tab?  Will there be an additional spreadsheet provided to present these costs?  
	The Appendix L, Cost Matrix, Software tab, column “F” is for the collection of annual cost of license or subscription.

	41 
	N/A
	Appendix L
	A SaaS, turn-key solution could possibly represent hosting charges that are in lieu of hardware, and potentially software charges.  Would this be acceptable to the Commonwealth?

	All solutions will be evaluated based on overall total cost.  What goes into that total cost is of no consequence, only that the cost represents all costs required for the proposed solution.

	42 
	Software Tab
	Appendix L, Cost Matrix
	Would it be acceptable to the Commonwealth to have SaaS services pricing presented as a 12 month charge versus a monthly or quarterly?
	According to Appendix L, Cost Matrix, annual cost should be provided.

	43 
	
	
	Can you reconfirm that the stated amount that was presented in the RFQ documentation of allocated funds for this project as being $1 million dollars is accurate?
	The Commonwealth does not disclose the anticipated budget for projects.

	44 
	13, Appendix B
	Section II-13, and Appendix B
	Can a portion of the development work be done remotely?  
	Any work requiring access to PHRC IT Systems must be done on the premises.  Other work may be performed remotely within the confines of Appendix B, Domestic Workforce Utilization.

	45 
	N/A
	N/A
	When is the award for this contract targeted to announced? When would the Commonwealth like to start the implementation?  Go live date? 
	The purchase order is anticipated to be issued in March, 2015, and PHRC’s goal is to have staff trained, tested and deploy the system by March 2016.  These timeframes are estimated.

	46 
	24
	IV-2, A, 2
	What is the anticipated number of “users” for the system?  
	Section IV-2,A, 2 Background. 2 states, “The PHRC consists of 101 professional staff located in four offices.”  All PHRC professional staff should be considered users of the system.

	47 
	24
	IV-2, A, 2
	What is the user number breakdown based on the following user categories: administrator, power user, traditional user, and read only/report only user  
	Please refer to the response to Question Number 45.

	48 
	Part IV and Appendix K
	Part IV and Appendix K
	Can the vendor assume that the current systems analysis is complete and that the AS-IS model identified in the RFQ document is a blueprint for the new system?
	The requirements set forth in Part IV of the RFQ, Work Statement, and Appendix K, RFQ Functional and Technical Detail Spreadsheet, serve as the “blueprint” for the new system.

	49 
	N/A
	
	Has the PA Human Relations Commission identified a Government off the Shelf (GOTS) Commercial off the Shelf (COTS) or Software as a Service (SaaS) product or service which substantially meets the requirements for the PHRC case management system?
	No, PHRC has not identified a Government off the Shelf (GOTS) Commercial off the Shelf (COTS) or Software as a Service (SaaS) product or service that substantially meets the requirements for the PHRC case management system.

	50 
	N/A
	N/A
	Would the PHRC prefer a third party hosted/ cloud based solution or a solution that runs on the Commonwealth of PA private cloud IT infrastructure?  
	Please refer to the response to Question Number 18.

	51 
	39
	IV-4, D
	What are the PHRC expectations for end user and administrative training?
	Please refer to Section IV-4, D, Phase 4 –Deploy/Knowledge Transfer.

	52 
	39, 43
	IV-4 D, IV-5.D
	What are PHRC’s expectations for support after the system has been implemented and accepted?
	The nature of the solution will determine the required level of support.  The RFQ lists the skills available for in-house support.

For COTS/MOTS/Custom solutions that cannot be supported by in-house staff, refer to the requirements of the SaaS solutions. 

For SaaS solutions please refer to Section IV-4.D.4, Helpdesk and Problem Resolution.

For solutions that can be wholly turned over to BADS, along with the remedies and warranties defined in the IT ITQ Terms and Conditions and the Final Report defined in Section IV-5.D, Final Report, the post deployment Tier 2 is a recommendation, but not a requirement. 

	53 
	10, 31
	Sections II-5, II-6 and IV-3, D
	The requirements matrix (Appendix K) is not listed in the format specified for the response, starting on page 10 (Part 2) of the RFI.  Do we submit this spreadsheet as part of the Technical Submittal?
	The RFQ, at Sections II-5 and II-6, Soundness of Approach and Work Plan, specifically directs Contractors to prepare responses based on the information set forth in Part IV, Statement of Work.  Paragraph IV-3, D, Detail Functional Requirements, requires the completion and submission of Appendix K, RFQ Functional and Technical Detail Spreadsheet.  

	54 
	ii
	N/A
	In order to be eligible for this solicitation, must a vendor first be qualified under the ITQ contract # 4400004480?  Is it sufficient that we have an application pending with ITQ #4400004480, or must we have completed that process? 
	Please refer to the response to Question Number 6.

	55 
	1
	Addendum 1 to RFQ posted on October 20, 2014.
	What is the amendment made on 9/24?
	As stated in the flyer for Addendum Number 1:

The following appendices were posted on September 24, 2014; however, an addendum was inadvertently not posted with the appendices.

Appendix K, CMS Functional Response Template
Appendix L, Cost Matrix

	56 
	1
	I-5
	There is no scheduled Pre-Proposal meeting?
	There is no pre-proposal meeting scheduled.  Please refer to Section I-5, Pre-proposal Conference.

	57 
	1
	I-5
	In the absence of a pre-proposal meeting, is the Commission available for meeting with interested vendors between now and the due date? 
	No, the Commonwealth is not available for meeting with interested vendors.

	58 
	3
	I-11
	
Page limits for the technical volume.  
	Please refer to the response to Question Number 2.

	59 
	13, Appendix B
	Section II-13 and Appendix B
	I represent Aithent, Inc. We have decided to submit our proposal in response to the Case Management System RFP No 6100030241. My query is - Is it mandatory for a vendor to submit the Domestic Workforce Utilization Certification with the proposal? Or it is to be submitted only if we seek consideration for this criterion? If we do plan to get some of the work done outside of the geographical boundaries of the US, do we have to mandatorily submit the Domestic Workforce Utilization Certification?
	Revised answer:  All contractors responding to this RFQ must complete and submit the Domestic Workforce Utilization Certification form with the Technical Submittal.  The form, located at Appendix B, Domestic Workforce Utilization Certification, is a required document.
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